

Gate Burton Energy Park

Preliminary Environmental Information Report

Volume 3, Appendix 7-B: Known Heritage Assets

June 2022

Gate Burton Energy Park Limited

Gate Burton Energy Park Preliminary Environmental Information Report Volume 3, Appendix 7-B: Known Heritage Assets



Quality information

Prepared by	Checked by	Verified by	Approved by
AP	FL	НМ	WB

Gate Burton Energy Park Preliminary Environmental Information Report Volume 3, Appendix 7-B: Known Heritage Assets



Prepared for:	
Sate Burton Energy Park Limited	
Prepared by:	
AECOM Limited	

© 2022 AECOM Limited. All Rights Reserved.

This document has been prepared by AECOM Limited ("AECOM") for sole use of our client (the "Client") in accordance with generally accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the terms of reference agreed between AECOM and the Client. Any information provided by third parties and referred to herein has not been checked or verified by AECOM, unless otherwise expressly stated in the document. No third party may rely upon this document without the prior and express written agreement of AECOM.

Gate Burton Energy Park Preliminary Environmental Information Report Volume 3, Appendix 7-B: Known Heritage Assets



Table of Contents

7.	Known Heritage Assets1
7.1	Designated Assets
7.2	Non-Designated Assets



7. Known Heritage Assets

7.1 Designated Assets

Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1004935	Scheduled monument	SK8321882071	Roman	Roman fort, south of Littleborough Lane. The scheduled monument includes the buried remains of a Roman fort visible as cropmarks on aerial photographs which define three sides of the fort. It is situated on a low crest at the edge of a gentle slope, above the flood plain of the River Trent to the west. The known dimensions of the fort are 116m north to south and 83m west to east, covering an area of approximately 0.8ha.	3km study area
1003669	Scheduled monument	SK 82380 82475	Roman	Segelocum Roman town. The site of the Roman small town of Segelocum. Remains identified include building foundations; pavements; remains of timber buildings dating from the 1 st century AD; two kilns; an oven; and building debris, coins and pottery dating from the late 1 st to later 4 th centuries. Aerial photographs indicate the site extends over an area of approximately 400m by 300m between the River Trent and the Mother Drain. Multiple roads are present defined by ditches on either side, creating quadrants and rectilinear sub-divisions. A short stretch of probable Roman road is	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site
					or Study Area?
				recorded immediately to the south of the settlement.	
1008685; MLI50244	Scheduled monument	SK 84621 85353	Medieval	Site of Heynings Priory. The scheduled monument includes the remains of the medieval nunnery of Heynings, a priory of Cistercian nuns founded after 1135 and dissolved in 1539. The remains include part of the inner precinct, most of the outer precinct and associated earthworks.	3km study area
1012976	Scheduled monument	SK 88205 82014	Early Medieval	Site of a college and Benedictine Abbey, St Mary's Church, comprising buried remains of an 11 th century Anglo-Saxon college and a later abbey located in the centre of Stow on the site of the now St Mary's Church.	3km study area
1019229	Scheduled monument	SK 86627 80926	Medieval	The medieval bishop's palace and deer park, Stow Park. The remains of the bishop's palace at Stow Park, together with those of its associated deer park and fishponds, survive well as a series of substantial earthworks.	3km study area
1016110	Scheduled monument	SK 84292 87140	Medieval	Hermit Dam moated site. The moated site takes the form of a roughly square platform surrounded on all sides by a dry moat approximately 10m wide and 3m at its deepest. The island measures 90m eastwest and 95m north-south and is the site of the manorial residence of the Trehampton and de Braose lords of Lea who held the manor from the 12th to the 14th century.	3km study area
1002949	Scheduled monument	SK 81335 89488	Medieval	Dog Island moat near Gainsborough, a medieval moated site on the west bank of the river.	Within 5km of the DCO Site



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1004991	Scheduled monument	SK 83658 78373	Medieval	Site of Torksey medieval town. Two fields between the modern village of Torksey and the Foss Dyke containing evidence of the remains of a medieval settlement.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1005056; 1064079	Scheduled monument, Grade I listed	SK 83619 78759	Post-Medieval	Torksey Castle. The ruins of a 16 th century Elizabethan mansion. The west façade and part of the rear wall only survive.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1008594, MNT15343, MNT4640	Scheduled monument	SK 81565 78552	Medieval	Fleet Plantation moated site. The scheduled monument includes a roughly square platform, measuring approximately 70m along each side, surrounded by a 10m wide ditch with a maximum depth of about 2m. Scattered brick and tile indicated that a 16 th or 17 th century building formerly stood on the site and this would have been preceded by a medieval timber building. The remains of a causeway across the moat are visible approximately mid-way along the north side.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1016920	Scheduled monument	SK 88099 88913	Medieval	Moated manorial complex immediately north west of Elm Tree Farm. The moated island takes the form of a roughly square platform, measuring 24m across, completely enclosed by a water-filled moat, 8m to 12m wide, and survives as earthworks and buried remains.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1016978	Scheduled monument	SK 91168 80706	Medieval	Thorpe medieval settlement. The monument includes the earthwork remains of the medieval village of Thorpe, a small settlement established before the late 11th century.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1016979	Scheduled monument	SK 90788 83064	Medieval	Coates medieval settlement and moated site. The monument includes the earthwork remains of the medieval village of Coates.	Within 5km of the DCO Site

AECOM



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
				Recorded in the late 11th century as a small settlement of about six households, by the early 14th century it had more than doubled in size.	
1017741	Scheduled monument	SK 79878 85306	Medieval	Medieval settlement and open field system immediately south east of Low Farm. The monument is situated adjacent to the former west bank of the River Trent and includes the earthwork and buried remains of the medieval settlement of West Burton.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1018290	Scheduled monument	SK 87805 88503	Medieval	Cross in All Saints churchyard comprises the base and lower part of the shaft of a limestone medieval standing stone, thought to be in its original position.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1020196	Scheduled monument	SK 88203 88787	Post-Medieval	Dovecote at Elm Tree Farm. The monument includes a dovecote situated at Elm Tree Farm, approximately 490m north-east of All Saints Church. The building is thought to date from the 19th century. The dovecote takes the form of a two-storeyed brick structure with a pantiled roof. It is rectangular in plan, measuring 5.6m eastwest and 4.6m north-south.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1064027	Grade II listed building	SK 86852 86905	Post-Medieval	No 18 and attached outbuildings, a mid-18 th century farmhouse of red brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064028	Grade II listed building	SK 86891 86444	Post-Medieval	Barn at Hall Farm, a late 18 th century threshing barn of red brick with pantile roof. It has a large rectangular north opening with wooden lintel and plank doors	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1064029	Grade II listed building	SK 87674 84580	Post-Medieval	20, Fillingham Road, a late 18 th century red brick cottage with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064030	Grade II listed building	SK 87462 84533	Post-Medieval	1 and 3, Stow Road, an early 19 th century house of chequered red and cream brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064050	Grade II* listed building	SK 82791 84617	Medieval	Church of St Mary, an 11 th century parish church with later additions. It is of coursed limestone rubble and limestone ashlar, in square plan. The church was originally a convent church of the Cistercian nunnery at Heynings.	3km study area
1064051	Grade II listed building	SK 84655 85308	Post-Medieval	Park Farm South Farmhouse, an early 19 th century farmhouse of red brick with slate hipped roofs.	3km study area
1064052	Grade II listed building	SK 82820 86649	Post-Medieval	Holly House, an early 19 th century house of colourwashed brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064053	Grade II listed building	SK 82822 86692	Post-Medieval	The Village Farmhouse, a mid-18 th century house of colourwashed brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064054	Grade II listed building	SK 82911 86846	Post-Medieval	Outhouse adjacent to and south of carthouse and stables at the Old Rectory, of 18 th century date of red brick and steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1064055	Grade II listed building	SK 82992 86870	Post-Medieval	Rectory Farmhouse, a late 17 th century farmhouse of colourwashed red brick and thickly pebbledashed first floor and 20 th century mock timber framing.	3km study area
1064056	Grade II listed building	SK 82884 86645	Post-Medieval	1 and 3, Willingham Road, two semidetached, mid-18 th century houses of red and brown brick.	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1064057	Grade II listed building	SK 83965 81837	Post-Medieval	Ingelby Arms Public House, an early 19 th century public house of colourwashed brick and hipped concrete tile roof.	3km study area
1064058	Grade II listed building	SK 85643 81458	Post-Medieval	Stow Park Station, built c.1850 of yellow brick with ashlar dressings with plain tile roofs with decorative ridge tiles, stone coped gables.	3km study area
1064059	Grade II listed building	SK8340981598	Post-Medieval	Windmill, of early 19 th century date built of red brick with broken decorated eaves.	3km study area
1064060	Grade II listed building	SK 84042 81812	Post-Medieval	Berforston Cottage, a mid-18 th century cottage of colourwashed brick and steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1064062	Grade II listed building	SK 88210 81966	Post-Medieval	Whipping Post, built 1789 of wood and iron, comprising a six foot post with hinged whipping irons.	3km study area
1064063	Grade II listed building	SK 88126 81983	Post-Medieval	Threshing Barn at Church End Farm, built in the mid-18 th century of red brick with steeply pitch hipped pantile roof.	3km study area
1064064	Grade II listed building	SK 88175 82116	Post-Medieval	21, Church Lane, an early 19 th century red brick house.	3km study area
1064066	Grade II listed building	SK 88233 81898	Post-Medieval	6, Sturton Road, an early 19 th century red brick house with concrete tile roof.	3km study area
1064067	Grade II listed building	SK 88143 80407	Post-Medieval	Subscription Mill, a tower mill built in 1801 of tarred red brick with decorated eaves.	3km study area
1064069	Grade II listed building	SK 86803 86730	Post-Medieval	28, Hight Street, an early 19 th century house of rendered and colourwashed brick and hipped concrete tiled roof.	3km study area
1064082	Grade II listed building	SK 84611 79587	Post-Medieval	Priory Cottage, a late 18 th century house of red brick with pantile roof.	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1064084	Grade II listed building	SK 84638 79611	Post-Medieval	Manor Farmhouse, a late 18 th century farmhouse of red brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1064085	Grade II* listed building	SK 82997 83419	Post-Medieval	Burton Chateau, a temple folly built in 1747 of red brick and limestone ashlar. Rectangular in plan with small, narrow projections to the north-east and south-west.	3km study area
1064086	Grade II listed building	SK 83780 82599	Post-Medieval	Gateway to Gate Burton Hall, built in the late 18 th century of limestone ashlar comprising two central gate piers with smaller gate triers to each side with connecting cast iron railings.	3km study area
1064087	Grade II listed building	SK 83890 82899	Post-Medieval	Church of St Helen built in 1866 of coursed limestone rubble. It comprises a west tower, nave, rectangular chancel with north vestry.	3km study area
1146553	Grade II listed building	SK 82911 86857	Post-Medieval	Carthouse and stables at the Old Rectory, of early 18 th century date of red brick and steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1146557	Grade II listed building	SK 82918 86842	Post-Medieval	Gate piers at the Old Rectory, 18 th century of red brick with ashlar dressings.	3km study area
1146567	Grade I listed building	SK 83082 86678	Medieval	Church of St Helen, a 13 th century parish church, restored in the 19 th century. Of coursed limestone rubble with plain tiled roofs. It consists of a west tower, nave with south porch and large north aisle, south transept and rectangular chancel.	3km study area
1146582	Grade II listed building	SK 83979 81777	Medieval	Cross, a 14 th century limestone ashlar cross, with 3 steps leading up to tall rectangular base with chamfered corners, with octagonal shaft, necking and cap above.	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1146594	Grade II listed building	SK 83996 82004	Post-Medieval	No. 21 and attached barn to rear, a late 18 th century house of red brick with hipped pantile roof.	3km study area
1146606	Grade II listed building	SK 85661 81465	Post-Medieval	Signal box at Stow Park Station, of late 19 th century of yellow brick with ashlar dressings and wood.	3km study area
1146611	Grade II listed building	SK 84122 81812	Post-Medieval	Wapping Lane Farmhouse and attached outbuildings, late 18 th century of red brick with steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1146624	Grade I listed building	SK 88190 81999	Medieval	Church of St Mary, an 11 th century parish church restored in the 19 th century. Uncoursed and coursed limestone rubble and limestone ashlar with lead roofs with stone coped gables and cross finials of various designs. Consists of a nave, northwest vestry, north stair turret, north and south transepts, crossing tower, rectangular chancel.	3km study area
1146735	Grade II listed building	SK 88133 82006	Post-Medieval	Stables and pigeoncote at Church End Farm, late 18 th century of red brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1146755	Grade II listed building	SK 88371 81978	Post-Medieval	9, Ingham Road, a 17 th century brown brick cottage with steeply pitch corrugated iron roof with tile coped gables.	3km study area
1146761	Grade II listed building	SK 88241 81888	Post-Medieval	Wesleyan Chapel, built 1824 of red brick with pantile roof. It consists of a single storey with 3 bay east front with central doorway.	3km study area
1146780	Grade II listed building	SK 87430 80914	Post-Medieval	Gallows Dale Farmhouse, built in the late 18 th century of red brick with pantile roof.	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1146805	Grade II listed building	SK 86920 86413	Post-Medieval	Hall Farmhouse and garden wall, a mid-18 th century farmhouse on possible 16 th century foundations, of colourwashed brick with pantile roof. In a H-plan and comprising two storeys with three bays.	3km study area
1146810, MNT4620, MNT9931, MNT9932	Grade II* listed building	SK 86855 86744	Medieval	Church of All Saints, a mid-11 th century parish church with later additions and restored in the 19 th century. Of coursed limestone and rubble with slate roofs, the church consists of a west tower, nave with north aisle, long chancel with north vestry.	3km study area
1146826	Grade II listed building	SK 87423 84514	Medieval	Church of St Helen, a 12 th century parish church of coursed limestone rubble and ashlar with plain tiled roofs. It comprises a west tower, nave with south porch, rectangular chancel with north vestry.	3km study area
1146841	Grade II listed building	SK 87421 84471	Post-Medieval	Old Rectory, mid-19 th century, now two houses. Of rendered and partly colourwashed red brick with a partly hipped slate roof. Comprising two storeys and five bays.	3km study area
1166351	Grade II listed building	SK 83724 83098	Modern	Gate Burton Hall Cottages, c. 1914 cottages of red brick with ashlar dressings with plain tile roofs. Comprises two storey and attic and 12 bay south front	3km study area
1216860	Grade I listed building	SK 82454 82619	Medieval	Church of St Nicholas, an 11 th century parish church, restored in the 19 th century and rebuilt 1900. Of herringbone and coursed rubble and incorporating Roman brick fragments. It comprises a nave with bellcote, chancel, lean-to vestry.	3km study area



Deference	Danis, and an	Out of Defenses	Books at	December 41 and	ENERGY PARK
Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
1275674	Grade II listed building	SK 81476 83076	Post-Medieval	Littleborough Cottage, an early 19 th century former toll house of brick with hipped glazed pantile roof.	3km study area
1275698	Grade II listed building	SK 82491 82543	Post-Medieval	Ferry House, an early 19 th century farmhouse, partly raised in the later 19 th century. Of brick with hipped and gabled slate roof. It comprises two storeys plus garrets and four bays in an L-plan.	3km study area
1308795	Grade II listed building	SK 87389 84579	Post-Medieval	Grange Farmhouse, a mid-18 th century farmhouse of rendered brick with pantile roof.	3km study area
1308810	Grade II listed building	SK 86818 86832	Post-Medieval	26, High Street, early 19 th century of rendered and colour washed brick with a pantile roof.	3km study area
1308917	Grade II listed building	SK8400581912	Post-Medieval	25, Gainsborough Road, a mid-18 th century cottage of rendered brick with a steeply pitched concrete tiled roof. In an L-plan and comprising two storeys and 2 bay front.	3km study area
1308937	Grade II listed building	SK 82938 86826	Post-Medieval	The Old rectory, an early 18 th century house of colour washed brick and slate roofs in a T-plan.	3km study area
1359457	Grade II listed building	SK 83829 82859	Post-Medieval	Old Rectory, an 18 th century house of stock brick and red brick with slate roof. In an L-plan with two storeys and garret and eight bay south front.	3km study area
1359458	Grade II* listed building	SK 83691 83040	Post-Medieval	Gate Burton Hall, a country house built 1774-1780 of brown and red brick with limestone ashlar dressings, and black pantile and slate roofs. It has a brown brick 18 th century south front with red brick single storey 2 bay additions to left and right of	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
				1913-14. It comprises two and a half storey and 5 bays.	
1359479	Grade II listed building	SK 87448 85712	Post-Medieval	2, Glenworth Road, an 18 th century farmhouse of red brick and some limestone rubble with pantile roof. It comprises two storeys and garret and three bay front in a T-plan.	3km study area
1359480	Grade II listed building	SK 82827 84611	Medieval	Knaith Hall, a 15 th century country house with later alterations. Of rendered and colour washed red brick with 19 th century mock timber framing. It comprises two storey, with attic on east side. There are 12 bays to the west front with three lower early 19 th century bays to left, and nine 17 th century bays,	3km study area
1359481	Grade II listed building	SK 82814 86606	Post-Medieval	Mellow Cottage and the Old Post office, early 19 th century cottages of red brick with pantile roof, comprising two storeys and five irregular bays.	3km study area
1359482	Grade II listed building	SK 82875 86756	Post-Medieval	The Cottage, mid-18 th century of red brick with burnt header band and steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1359483	Grade II listed building	SK 82929 86901	Post-Medieval	Gazebo at the Old Rectory, a late 18 th century gazebo of red brick with pantile roof in a square plan.	3km study area
1359484	Grade I listed building	SK 83970 81759	Medieval	Church of St. Margaret of Antioch, mid-11 th century with later additions of limestone herringbone rubble and slate roofs with decorative ridge tiles and battlemented east gables. It comprises a west tower, nave with north and south aisles, south porch and	3km study area

11



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
				rectangular chancel with small northern recess.	
1359485	Grade II listed building	SK8401481942	Post-Medieval	Thornleigh House, a mid-18 th century red brick house with ashlar dressings and a steeply pitched pantile roof.	3km study area
1359486	Grade II listed building	SK 88053 81951	Post-Medieval	Manor Farmhouse, a 17 th century former manor house. Artisan Mannerist house reduced and adapted in the 19 th century. Of red brick with hipped slate roof, comprising two storeys, four bay front with plinth.	3km study area
1359488	Grade II listed building	SK 88913 81257	Post-Medieval	Old Rectory home for the elderly, c.1870 of stock brick and red brick with slate roof. Comprises two storeys with three storey bay above door, five bay front with doorway to right	3km study area
1359508	Grade II listed building	SK 86822 86563	Post-Medieval	37, High Street, a 17 th century cottage of coursed limestone rubble raised with 19 th century red brick. Comprises one storey with garret.	3km study area
1359509	Grade II listed building	SK 87396 84496	Post-Medieval	Willingham House, a small 18 th century country house of red brick and stock brick with slate roofs. Comprises two storeys with attic and 11 bay west front.	3km study area
1472727	Grade II listed building	SK8378483078	Post-Medieval	Walled Garden at Gate Burton Hall built in the 18 th or 19 th century. The walls are of handmade red brick laid in English garden wall bond. Located to the east of Gate Burton Hall, it has a large rectangular plan with adjoining sheds/ bothies on the outer side of the north and east walls. A lean-to	3km study area



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
				glass house is located on the inner side of the north wall.	
1064048	Grade I listed building	SK 87799 88513	Medieval	Church of All Saints, a mid-11 th century parish church with later additions. Of coursed limestone rubble and ashlar with slate roofs. Comprises a west tower, nave with north aisle and south porch and rectangular chancel.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1146616	Grade I listed building	SK 87566 89756	Medieval	Church of St Lawrence and St George, an 11 th century parish church with later additions and restored in the 19 th century. Of limestone rubble and ashlar with slate roofs. The church comprises a west tower, nave with south aisle and south porch, rectangular chancel, north vestry and southeast chapel.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1146742	Grade I listed building	SK 90806 83096	Medieval	Church of St Edith, mid-12 th century parish church restored in the 19 th century. Of coursed limestone rubble and ashlar with plain tiled roof and timber framed east gable.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1234265	Grade I listed building	SK 78712 82261	Medieval	Church of St Martin, a 12 th century parish church, restored in the 19 th century. Of ashlar, dressed stone and coursed rubble, and comprising a west tower, nave, south aisle, chancel, south porch.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1063525	Grade II* listed building	SK 81634 89913	Post-Medieval	County Court Buildings, 18 th century building of red brick comprising three storeys and five bays with central doorway.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1063547	Grade II* listed building	SK 81368 89851	Post-Medieval	Elswitha Hall, an 18 th century town house of red brick with hipped pantile roof. Comprises	



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
				three storeys and five bay front with central doorway.	
1064078	Grade II* listed building	SK 83699 78951	Medieval	Church of St Peter, an early 13 th century parish church of squared limestone rubble and lead roofs. The nave, aisle, and chancel with rebuilt in the 19 th century.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1275773	Grade II* listed building	SK 78799 83871	Medieval	Church of St Peter and St Paul, a 12 th century parish church, restored in 1870. Burnt down 1901 and rebuilt by Hodgson Fowler, 1901- 02. Of dressed stone and ashlar with graduated slate and lead roofs. It comprises a west tower and tower chamber, nave, north and south aisles, chancel, vestry, south chancel chapel and south porch.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1359456, MLI52559	Grade II* listed building	SK8361979151	Post-Medieval	Torksey Viaduct over River Trent, built between 1847 and 1849 by the Manchester, Sheffield and Lincolnshire Railway Company. It is constructed of iron box girders and cast iron columns and beams, supported by ashlar and coursed masonry abutments and a central pier at its western end.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1359751	Grade II* listed building	SK 81361 89852	Post-Medieval	Gatepiers to Elswitha Hall, 18 th century gatepiers of panelled stone with obelisk finials.	Within 5km of the DCO Site
-	Conservation Area		-	Gainsborough Town	Within 5km of the DCO Site
-	Conservation Area		-	Gainsborough Riverside	Within 5km of the DCO Site



Reference	Designation	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Located within Site or Study Area?
-	Conservation Area		-	Springthorpe	Within 5km of the DCO Site
-	Conservation Area		-	Gainsborough Britannia Works	Within 5km of the DCO Site
1064080	Grade II listed building	SK 84595 79460	Post-Medieval	The Beeches. A late 18 th century house with later improvements.	500m study area
1064081	Grade II listed building	SK 84597 79476	Post-Medieval	Richards-Havercross Cottages, 1-3 Main Street. Three red brick cottages with later additions.	500m study area
1064083	Grade II listed building	SK 84612 79447	Post-Medieval	The Hermitage, Main Street. Redbrick house with doorway flanked by glazing bar sashes with three glazing bars.	500m study area
1212380 MNT4989	Grade II listed building	SK 81825 80071	Medieval	Church of Holy Trinity, Town Street. Built in the 12 th century with additions in the 16 th century. Restored in 1869 and 1890.	500m study area
1233878	Grade II listed building	SK 79986 78593	Post-Medieval	Manor Farmhouse, attached outbuildings and wall. Red brick building with slate roof.	500m study area
1233879	Grade I listed building	SK 79950 78580	Medieval	Church of All Saints. Parish church dating from the 10 th century with additions in the 13 th to 17 th centuries. The church was restored in 1894.	500m study area
1276406	Grade II listed building	SK 80084 78570	Post-Medieval	Rose Cottage, 3 Torksey Street. Group of three buildings dating to the late 18 th century.	500m study area
1276407	Grade I listed building	SK 79972 78590	Post-Medieval	Gateway from Manor Farm to churchyard and the attached walls seven meters west of Manor Farmhouse.	500m study area
1370089	Grade II listed building	SK 81838 80067	Post-Medieval	Font, half a meter east of south porch at Church of Holy Trinity. Octagonal and	500m study area



Reference Designation Grid Reference Period Description Located within Site or Study Area?

carried on octagonal stem, with base inscribed 'Ancient font presented to Church by Archbishop', '1918', and with Vicar and Churchwardens' names.

7.2 Non-Designated Assets

Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI50485	SK 8330 8520	Medieval	Medieval warren recorded in 1536, as part of the deer park. Conney Green, East of Stephenson's Hill.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI53678	SK 8515 8328	Modern	Wind pump at Clay Farm, built in 1930 measuring 32 ft high with sails 11 ft in diameter. Now derelict.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90353	SK 84645 85755	Bronze Age	Worked flint, probably of Bronze Age date, found at Knaith Park	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90354	SK 84721 85803	Bronze Age	Worked flint, probably of Bronze Age date, found at Knaith Park	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90355	SK 84858 85923	Bronze Age	Worked flint, probably of Bronze Age date, found at Knaith Park	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90356	SK 84762 85899	Bronze Age	Worked flint, probably of Bronze Age date, found at Knaith Park	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50408	SK 8390 8510	Medieval	Medieval Deer Park, Knaith. The medieval park may have been created in 1344 when John Darcy was licensed to empark woodland though this was possibly in another parish. Certainly by 1536 there was a deer park stocked with 38 deer as well as a 'warren of conies'.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98302	SK 84676 85775	Medieval	A sherd of medieval pottery, Knaith	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98303	SK 84747 85851	Medieval	A sherd of medieval pottery, Knaith	Solar and Energy Storage Park



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI116479	SK 8432 8299	Unknown	Unsubstantiated Burial Ground, Burton Wood, Gate Burton	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI118135	SK 8492 8601	Post-Medieval	Thurlby Farm, Knaith, the site of a 19 th century demolished farm.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI118136	SK 8500 8419	Post-Medieval	Siding Farm, Knaith. Redeveloped 19th century farmstead. Regular courtyard with linked working buildings to all four sides of the yard.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI118140	SK 8512 8352	Post-Medieval	Site of High Pasture Farm, Gate Burton. Demolished 19th century farmstead.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50529	SK 8314 8480	Medieval	The remains of settlement earthworks, formerly part of the village of Knaith, lie on the east bank of the river Trent, at a prominent bend in the river. The documentary evidence for Knaith from 1086 onwards indicates a settlement	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54017	SK 8345 8475	Prehistoric	Possible prehistoric cropmark enclosures and boundary ditches	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50409	SK 8290 8438	Post-Medieval	Post-Medieval deer park and garden, south of Knaith Hall, comprising earthworks of 16 th and 17 th century date.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98360	SK 83495 83197	Post-Medieval	Parkland associated with Gate Burton Hall, Gate Burton, possibly earlier than the 18 th century house.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50651	SK 8438 8315	Medieval	Burton Wood, Gate Burton, an area of woodland (6 hectares of which classified as semi-natural and the remaining 4 hectares classified as plantation).	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50512	SK 8392 8287	Medieval	Gate Burton Settlement, a medieval settlement dispersed by the emparking in the 18 th century. The most prominent earthworks are two hollow-ways: one runs approximately north to south (to just west of the Old Rectory) and, though it is very broad and smooth profile may result from continued use as a carriage road within the park, it perhaps marks the former line of the Gainsborough Road before the creation of the parkland. It is named 'Town Street' in glebe terriers. The second hollow-way continues the direct east to west line of Clay Lane downhill off the higher land to the east.	Solar and Energy Storage Park



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI50914	SK 8333 8527	Medieval	Medieval ploughed out ridge and furrow, now visible as cropmarks.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54016	SK 8479 8539	Medieval	Probable late medieval ridge and furrow with a plough headland at Knaith.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54018	SK 8374 8410	Unknown	Undated cropmark enclosures and boundary ditch.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54019	SK 8415 8488	Medieval	Cropmark of a medieval field boundary.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54022	SK 8470 8487	Medieval	Medieval ridge and furrow.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90076	SK 84032 82466	Post-Medieval	Site of Burton Windmill, Gate Burton, recorded on the 1891 OS map, and no longer extant.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI90939	SK 84180 84587	Unknown	Cropmark undated rectangular enclosure, Knaith.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI97380	SK 84673 85821	Iron Age/ Roman	Iron working site (probably Iron Age or Romano-British) at Knaith Park.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98301	SK 84801 85867	Roman	Six sherds of Roman pottery, Knaith.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98304	SK 84781 85875	Unknown	Undated ceramic building material, glass and slag, Knaith.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI98305	SK 84781 85875	Post-Medieval	Post medieval pottery and clay pipe, Knaith.	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI54012	SK 8518 8316	Medieval	Earthwork remains of medieval Ridge and Furrow, Clay Farm, Gate Burton	Solar and Energy Storage Park
AEC001	SK 85057 83049	Post-medieval	Clay Farm – 19 th century	Solar and Energy Storage Park
MLI50631	SK 8397 8175	Early Medieval	Anglo-Saxon sculptural fragments recorded at St Margaret's Church.	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI51375	SK 829 846	Medieval	A medieval jetton found at Knaith Hall.	1km study area
MLI52470	SK 8400 8185	Post-Medieval	George II pennies and clay pipes.	1km study area
MLI52481	SK 8400 8180	Medieval	Documentary evidence relating to the site of the medieval village of Marton.	1km study area
MLI52494	SK 8405 8180	Post-Medieval	Jetton of Hans Krauwinckel (c.1580-1610).	1km study area
MLI116450	SK 8434 8201	Roman/ Medieval	Redeposited Pottery Sherd, Stow Park Road, Marton of either Roman or 13th to 15th century medieval date	1km study area
MLI50256	SK 8340 8210	Iron Age	Bronze bangle found in Marton.	1km study area
MLI50452	SK 8335 8210	Medieval/ Post- Medieval	Medieval or post-medieval coin weight box lid found in Marton.	1km study area
MLI50907	SK 8720 8525	Post-Medieval	Site of Kexby Mill, marked on the 1824 first edition 1 inch Ordnance Survey map.	1km study area
MLI50908	SK 8610 8548	Post-Medieval	Site of a brickyard south of Kexby Lane, recorded on the 1824 OS map.	1km study area
MLI50921	SK 8742 8449	Unknown	Reused grave slabs located in the west and south walls of St Helen's Church.	1km study area
MLI50923	SK 8776 8382	Post-Medieval	Site of a post-medieval wooden post mill.	1km study area
MLI51371	SK 8390 8290	Medieval	Site of the medieval parish church of Gate Burton. In 1741 the chancel was said to be ruinous, and a petition was submitted in 1784 requesting the rebuilding of the whole church which was described as a 'very ancient building' with chancel, nave, and tower. The replacement, built at the Huttons' expense before 1793 was in a 'pseudo-classical style, externally, and more like a room than a church, within' and was presumably designed as a landscape feature.	1km study area
MLI51383	SK 8440 8598	Neolithic	Prehistoric hammer stone or stone pounder, found north of Moor Plantation	1km study area
MLI51386	SK 8443 8617	Neolithic	Neolithic stone axe found south-east of Lea Grange Farm.	1km study area
MLI51647	SK 8335 8210	Medieval	Medieval annular brooch of 13 th or 14 th century date recorded at Marton.	1km study area
MLI52046	SK 8750 8420	Medieval	Ridge and furrow recorded in Willingham.	1km study area
MLI52463	SK 8423 8208	Roman	A Roman coin of Faustina I, found to the north-east of Marton.	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI52473	SK 8310 8230	Post-Medieval	Sixteenth Century Lead Cloth Seal, Marton	1km study area
MLI52474	SK 8396 8208	Roman	Roman coin of Constantine II (337-340) found in Marton.	1km study area
MLI52486	SK 8322 8225	Medieval	Cropmarks of a probable former windmill mound of possible medieval date, to the north-west of Marton.	1km study area
MLI54013	SK 8750 8450	Medieval	Medieval settlement of Willingham.	1km study area
MLI82761	SK 873 827	Roman	Find of a silver Roman brooch from Manor Farm, Stow. Of probable 2 nd or 3 rd century date.	1km study area
MLI98578	SK 8332 8225	Roman	A Roman stone inscription from an altar to Mars found near Marton.	1km study area
MLI98583	SK 833 858	Roman	A Roman Aureus coin of Trajan, found on land to the south of Lea.	1km study area
MLI118108	SK 8697 8477	Post-Medieval	Valley Farm, Willingham. Redeveloped 19th century farmstead. Regular courtyard of U plan.	1km study area
MLI118111	SK 8743 8459	Post-Medieval	Site of a farmstead, Willingham. Demolished 19 th century farmstead. Regular courtyard of F plan.	1km study area
MLI118124	SK 8639 8329	Post-Medieval	Sandy Barr, Willingham. A redeveloped 19 th century outfarm. Loose courtyard with two sides of the courtyard formed by working agricultural buildings.	1km study area
MLI125055	SK 8315 8609	Prehistoric	A redeposited flint of likely late prehistoric date, found on land off Gainsborough Road, Lea.	1km study area
MLI52462	SK 8405 8200	Roman	Paving stones, possibly part of Till Bridge Lane or a Roman house, along with Roman coins recorded in Marton.	1km study area
MLI52476	SK 8381 8203	Roman	A 4 th century, Roman bronze coin of Crispus, found in the garden of 29 Littleborough Lane, Marton.	1km study area
MLI50575	SK 8998 7997	Roman	Till Bridge Lane, a Roman road linking Ermine Street north of Lincoln to the crossing of the Trent at Marton.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI50290	SK 8381 8317	Post-Medieval	Ornamental garden moat at Gate Burton Hall shown on 19 th century maps and recorded in 1962.	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI50392	SK 8374 8470	Post-Medieval	Duck Decoy Pond, Park Plantation. A sub-rectangular decoy pond with a single pipe leading from the middle of the south side.	1km study area
MLI50393	SK 8377 8456	Post-Medieval	Duck Decoy Pond, Park Plantation. A sub-rectangular decoy pond with a single pipe leading from the southwest corner.	1km study area
MLI50544	SK 8335 8271	Unknown	Enclosure cropmarks recorded in Gate Burton. It has been interpreted as the possible site of a Roman fort, as well as possible agricultural remains.	1km study area
MLI51376	SK 8262 8436	Unknown	The possible site of a watermill to the south-west of Knaith Hall. It is recorded as earthworks including a small rectangular enclosure with an attached oval pond and a ditch which may have led water to the pond.	1km study area
MLI51378	SK 8301 8453	Medieval	Building remains and pottery scatter, Dutch Cottage.	1km study area
MLI52482	SK 8354 8180	Unknown	A faint linear cropmark of possible agricultural origin.	1km study area
MLI52483	SK 8382 8170	Unknown	Possible earthworks, suggesting two sides of a moat.	1km study area
MLI52484	SK 8399 8148	Unknown	Possible earthworks, may be the site of a fishpond.	1km study area
MLI54020	SK 8293 8425	Medieval	Remains of a medieval ridge and furrow field system.	1km study area
MLI54021	SK 8279 8446	Medieval	A possible medieval earthwork platform.	1km study area
MLI87219	SK 84076 81816	Post-Medieval	Former Primitive Methodist Chapel, Marton. It was built in 1836. It was still in existence in the 1950s but had been demolished by the 1970s.	1km study area
MLI89078	SK 83799 81940	Unknown	Undated ditch, Littleborough Lane, Marton. Several linear features were identified during geophysical survey, at least one of which can be tentatively interpreted as a ditch of unknown date and function.	1km study area
MLI98858	SK 84639 81516	Post-Medieval	Former Farm Buildings, Rectory Farm, Marton. Late 19 th century former farm buildings, demolished in 2013.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI52492	SK 8526 8177	Medieval	Earthwork remains of a former medieval ridge and furrow field system to the east of Marton,	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI52472	SK 8475 8186	Roman	Cropmarks of probable Roman activity, to the east of Marton.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI52493	SK 8541 8248	Medieval	Earthwork remains of medieval ridge and furrow, at Sort Hills, Marton	1km study area
MLI116360	SK 8456 8199	Medieval	Traces of probable medieval ridge and furrow, on land off Stow Park Road, Marton.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI116361	SK 8454 8203	Unknown	An area of probable quarrying of uncertain date, on land off Stow Park Road, Marton.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI50066	SK 8466 8151	Post-Medieval	Rectory Farm, Marton. Partially extant 19 th century farmstead. Regular courtyard with linked working buildings to all four sides of the yard.	Within Grid Connection Route and 1km study area
MLI54010	SK 8342 8343	Medieval	Remains of a medieval ridge and furrow field system, to the north-west of Gate Burton.	1km study area
MLI52489	SK 8458 8125	Roman	Cropmarks of a probable Roman trackway and field boundaries, to the southeast of Marton.	1km study area
MLI52139	SK 8401 8198	Post-Medieval	Manor Farm, Marton. Partially extant 19th century farmstead. Regular courtyard with multiple regular yards.	1km study area
MLI50257	SK 8340 8210	Roman	Various Roman copper alloy objects recorded at Littleborough Lane, Marton found by metal detector.	1km study area
MLI50596	SK 8335 8260	Roman	Finds from a possible Roman fort including Roman pottery, glass, brick and roofing tiles as well as a 2 nd century bronze brooch.	1km study area
MLI50916	SK 8439 8548	Unknown	A probable undated cropmark enclosure.	1km study area
MLI50917	SK 8450 8570	Unknown	Cropmark of an undated causeway.	1km study area
MLI51374	SK 827 849	Roman	Roman pottery and tile kiln complex recorded at Knaith.	1km study area
MLI51381	SK 8467 8605	Roman	Roman pottery kiln complex recorded to the south-east of Lea Grange Farm.	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI51382	SK 8439 8633	Mesolithic	Mesolithic flints found to the east of Lea Grange Farm.	1km study area
MLI51384	SK 845 860	Prehistoric	Prehistoric flints and stone axes, found north of Upton Road	1km study area
MLI52445	SK 8828 8313	Medieval	Remains of Normanby by Stow shrunken medieval village.	1km study area
MLI52464	SK 8390 8210	Roman	Roman pottery scatter found near Till Bridge Lane.	1km study area
MLI52466	SK 8332 8229	Medieval	Medieval pottery found in field beside Till Bridge Lane.	1km study area
MLI52467	SK 8332 8229	Post-Medieval	Post-medieval pottery found in field beside Till Bridge Lane.	1km study area
MLI54011	SK 8318 8244	Medieval	A medieval trackway recorded as cropmarks.	1km study area
MLI54023	SK 8433 8642	Unknown	Various cropmarks recorded on aerial photographs.	1km study area
MLI54032	SK 8439 8633	Prehistoric	Prehistoric flints and a stone axe found to the east of Lea Grange Farm.	1km study area
MLI80070	SK 8561 8576	Medieval	Medieval earthwork ridge and furrow	1km study area
MLI80326	SK 8841 8234	Medieval	Probable medieval ridge and furrow and earthworks, Stow	1km study area
MLI84314	SK 8724 8294	Roman	Roman settlement, Marton Road, Stow identified during a watching brief and subsequently excavated in the summer of 1997. Two phases of a small rural settlement or farmstead were identified, based on a mixed farming economy.	1km study area
MLI98349	SK 87398 84298	Post-Medieval	Willingham House Parkland, Willingham recorded on the 1880 map.	1km study area
MLI98287	SK 8372 8640	Post-Medieval	Demolished cottages/outbuilding, Lea Grange Farm, Lea	1km study area
MLI50650	SK 8433 8591	Medieval	Stag Wood, Lea. An area of woodland (two hectares of which is classified as semi-natural and the remaining one hectare is classified as plantation)	1km study area
MLI50653	SK 8496 8701	Medieval	Thurlby and Caistor's Woods, Upton. An area of woodland (28 hectares of which classified as semi-natural and the remaining 5 hectares classified as plantation)	1km study area
MLI54028	SK 8261 8598	Medieval	Earthworks of medieval ridge and furrow to the south-west of Lea	1km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI118132	SK 8355 8593	Post-Medieval	Moor House Farm, Lea. Partially extant 19th century farmstead. Regular courtyard with linked working buildings to all four sides of the yard.	1km study area
MLI118131	SK 8367 8641	Post-Medieval	Lea Grange Farm, Lea. Partially extant 19 th century farmstead. Regular courtyard with multiple regular yards.	1km study area
MLI51394	SK 8310 8625	Post-Medieval	The site of Lea Hall, Park and Gardens. The formal gardens, comprising terraces, walks and ponds lying east of Lea Hall, are partly recorded on early OS map sheets and may survive in the woodland. The lay-out is shown on an estate	1km study area
			plan of 1826.	
MLI51393	SK 8321 8669	Medieval	Lea Medieval Settlement. The settlement of Lea, is documented in Domesday Book.	1km study area
MLI54030	SK 8321 8669	Post-Medieval	Lea Post-Medieval Settlement. Lea expanded rapidly during the 20 th century, as a suburb of Gainsborough. Its core is principally along the main through road, with minor re-alignments of that road that can be documented in the 19 th and 20 th centuries.	1km study area
MLI125003	SK 8323 8618	Medieval	Remains of medieval ridge and furrow, to the south of Lea.	1km study area
MLI125054	SK 8300 8615	Roman	Roman Ditches, Gainsborough Road, Lea	1km study area
MLI125053	SK 8305 8613	Unknown	A number of ditches, pit, and possible enclosure features of uncertain date, on land off Gainsborough Road, Lea.	1km study area
MLI54200	SK 8320 8207	Roman	Remains of a Roman fort, to the west of Marton.	1km study area
MLI51369	SK 8346 8225	Roman	Roman settlement site on both sides of Till Bridge Lane, comprising ribbon development along the Roman road to the north-west of Marton.	1km study area
MLI50927	SK 8715 8482	Medieval	Remains of ridge and furrow earthworks to the north of Willingham by Stow.	1km study area
MNT4982	SK 810 809	Unknown	Linear features at South Leverton identified from cropmarks.	500m study area
MNT4983	SK 806 802	Unknown	Linear and circular features at South Leverton identified from cropmarks.	Within Grid Connection Route



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MNT4981	SK 807 814	Unknown	Linear and enclosure features at South Leverton identified from cropmarks.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT5989	SK 797 800	Medieval to Post Medieval	Ridge and furrow at South Leverton.	500m study area
MNT6103	SK 804 783	Unknown	Earthworks at East End Farm. Rampton. Bank and hollow way. Also, some ridge and furrow.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT6166	SK 8087 7853	Medieval to Post Medieval	Field boundary, Rampton. Defined by a single ditch.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT6104	SK 798 782	Unknown	Possible earthworks at Hall Farm, Rampton. Inculdes some well preserved ridge and furrow.	500m study area
MNT6714	SK 7988 7899	Unknown	Earthworks in the grounds of the Manor House.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT15983	SK 8162 8057	Iron Age to Roman	Posable Iron Age to Roman settlement at Cottam. An incomplete, asymmetric, curvilinear enclosure, 180m by 100m, defined in places by 2 parallel ditches. Three small, circular enclosures, some incomplete, and with an average diameter of 8m were recorded within the enclosure, and may be hut circles. A discontinuous, sinuous linear feature, 250m in length and defined by 2 parallel ditches, may be a trackway. To the west a potential incomplete enclosure defined by the arc of a single ditch is also recorded.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT26616	SK 79977 78692	Post Medieval	Grounds at Rampton Hall. The Tudor mansion beside the church was demolished in 1726, a farmhouse now stands on the site. The gateway to the churchyard remains, and is listed grade I.	500m study area
MNT26833	SK 80039 78912	Post Medieval to Modern	Grounds at Rampton Manor. Georgian to late 20 th century designed landscape.	500m study area
MNT10521	SK 8202 7873	Iron Age	Late pre-Roman pottery of Iron Age C type. Many of these are of particular interest as they may be an early Nottinghamshire ware.	500m study area
MNT10522	SK 82011 78729	Roman	Features identified through archaeological evaluation – Area 1. Beneath the plough-soil was a thin, roughly circular patch of yellow and red burnt clay 750mm in diameter, surrounded by an ashy spread and interpreted as a	500m study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
			hearth. A group of possible post-holes were also found in the south-east corner of the area. Finds suggest occupation in the C2 AD	
MNT10523	SK 82014 78734	Iron Age to Roman	Features identified through archaeological evaluation – Area 2. Within this area was found the stake and post holes of a wattle and daub structure defined by a large patch of clay pierced with stake holes. Two alignments of stakes were distinguished suggesting two building phases. The pottery from this area ranged from pre-Roman Iron Age to the C2nd AD.	500m study area
MNT10524	SK 82018 78720	Iron Age to Roman	Features identified through archaeological evaluation – Area 3-5. This area was disturbed by four modern calf burials at a depth of 1.2m – 1.5m. The earliest feature appeared to be a circular building defined by a U-shaped gully (Area IV) and a corresponding southern arc of this gully in Area V. Only the north arc was properly excavated and revealed settings of contingent circular posts which varied between 200mm and 300mm in depth and 100mm and 250mm in diameter. The building measured just over 6m at its widest external diameter and the foundation trench was c 300mm in depth. The entrance at the north west was 2m wide. The hearth or forge within the structure was egg-shaped and measured 750mm by 600mm. Its clay tuyere pipe was burnt red and yellow along its length. The pit was 210mm - 270mm deep and included a fragment of bronze and one of slag. Other features included a series of ditches and pits.	500m study area
MNT10525	SK 82035 78719	Iron Age to Roman	Features identified through archaeological evaluation - Area 6. This cutting was sited to identify whether certain features continued beyond area 3 – 5. The earliest feature found was a probable pre-Roman Iron Age ditch. This had been cut by a later ditch.	500m study area
MNT10526		Iron Age to Roman	Features identified through archaeological evaluation - Area 7. This small cutting was designed to find further pre-Roman Iron Age features. This cutting revealed several ditches overlaying one another probably dating back to the pre-Roman Iron Age.	500m study area
MNT10527	SK 8202 7873	Roman	Unstratified Roman finds from Rampton including a fan tail brooch (AD50-70), coins (AD335-383), pottery, pieces of tegula and an intaglio setting for a finger ring.	500m study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MNT10528	SK 8202 7873	Roman	Excavations in 1965 by the Retford Archaeological Group identified traces of several ditches dated to the Roman period.	500m study area
MNT11670	SK 8094 7970	Roman	A single sherd of Nene Valley colour coated beaker $2^{nd}-3^{rd}$ century AD Romano - British pottery from Cottam Power Station, Treswell	500m study area
MNT11671	SK 8904 7970	Medieval	Medieval pottery green glazed pot rim found loose on the suface from Cottam Power Station, Treswell	500m study area
MNT11672	SK 8904 7970	Post Medieval	Post medieval finds from Cottam Power Station, Treswell – a sherd of pottery and a fragment of clay pipe stem from topsoil stripping.	500m study area
MNT11691	SK 8201 7869	Roman	Romano-British pottery from pipeline, Rampton. Remains of a single large vessel with sherds from other vessels.	500m study area
MNT11692	SK 8214 7869	Unknown	Ditch at Phase 1, Rampton Quarry	500m study area
MNT11693	SK 8192 7840	Iron Age	Early / Middle Iron Age post holes and pit. A ring of eight post holes enclosing an oval area containing an internal pit that included heat-affected stones and charcoal. A double row of post holes extended from the east edge of the circle.	500m study area
MNT11694	SK 820 786	Mesolithic to Bronze Age	Mesolithic to Bronze Age lithics from Phase 3, Rampton. A thin scatter of lithic artefacts.	500m study area
MNT11695	SK 8195 7869	Neolithic to Bronze Age	Late Neolithic / early Bronze Age pit at Rampton. Decorated pottery beaker retrieved from a pit that was cut by a Romano-British enclosure ditch.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT11696	SK 8189 7864	Iron Age to Roman	Field system ditches (Phase 2) at Rampton Quarry. Rectilinear arrangement of ditches, some of which produced a small quantity of Roman pottery sherds.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT11697	SK 8195 7868	Roman	Romano-British ditches and features (Phase 3) at Rampton Quarry. Substantial rectangular ditched enclosure, suggestions of internal structures.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT11698	SK 8202 7869	Roman	Romano-British ditches and features (Phase 4), at Rampton. Another large subrectangular ditched enclosure with at least five major internal compartments. Entrances visible on east sides.	500m study area
MNT11699	SK 820 787	Roman	Romano-British ditches (Phase 5) at Rampton. Final stratigraphic phase consisting of rectangular arrangement of shallow narrow gullies.	500m study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MNT11700	SK 820 786	Iron Age to Roman	Iron Age and Romano-British finds from Rampton Quarry. Artefact scatter of 1 st century BC to 4 th century AD including 15,000 pottery sherds, fired and unfired clay, daub, tegulae, tile fragments, smithing slag, rotary querns, metalwork and coins.	500m study area
MNT11701	SK 820 787	Iron Age	Late Iron Age ditches at Rampton. Large sub-squared ditched enclosure with substantial quantities of Iron Age pottery recovered from box trenches.	500m study area
MNT11702	SK 820 786	Roman	Unphased Romano-British occupation levels at Rampton. Tegula floored hearth and a compacted clay floor.	500m study area
MNT11703	SK 8206 7871	Roman	Romano-British ditches and finds from Rampton. Possible Roman soil horizon containing abraded pottery sherds of 1 st to 3 rd century ate. Beneath this were at least three phases of ditch and gully cut into the natural sand.	500m study area
MNT11704	SK 8189 7864	Roman	Romano-British ditches at Rampton. Shallow gullies beneath alluvium.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT15344	SK 8202 7873	Iron Age to Roman	Late Iron Age and Romano-British settlement at Rampton. Traces of wattle and daub buildings, various pottery, ditches etc.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT25800	SK 7998 7861	Medieval to Post Medieval	Manor House at Rampton. Enloarged or rebuilt c. 1540, shown on a plan of 1717, demolished 1726. Now partially built on and part allotment gardens.	500m study area
MNT26007	SK 8192 7480	Iron Age	Early Iron Age settlement (phase 1) at Rampton. A ring of eight post holes enclosing an oval area interpreted as foundations of a roundhouse. An internal pit contained heat affected stones and charcoal interpreted as a hearth.	500m study area
MNT26008	SK 819 786	Neolithic to Bronze Age	Late Neolithic / Early Bronze Age burial at Rampton. Ceramic pot upright in a small pit. Interpreted as a burial and the human remains thought unlikely to have survived in the acidic soil.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT26090	SK 8004 7824	Unknown	Holme Farm Barn, no further details given.	500m study area
MNT27156	SK 82640 80573	Neolithic	Evidence of Neolithic agriculture, Cottam, from auger survey. Some suggestion of clearance and tillage.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT4641	SK 8202 7873	Roman	Roman finds from Rampton – artefact scatter. Pottery rotary quern fragments, spindle whorls, roof tiles, copper alloy brooches, glass fragment, crucible fragment, smelting slag and animal bone.	500m study area

AECOM



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MNT4985	SK 820 814	Early Medieval	Early medieval finds from Coates, North Leverton. Two stones with Anglo-Saxon carvings found amongst farm buildings.	500m study area
MNT5679	SK 79970 78592	Post Medieval	Structure at Rampton, Stine gateway from Manor Farm to churchyard.	500m study area
MNT6167	SK 801 790	Medieval to Post Medieval	Field boundaries, Rampton. Two perpendicular field boundaries defined by banks.	500m study area
MNT6176	SK 8111 8015	Unknown	Sub-circular enclosure, South Leverton. Cropmark, potential entrance facing north-west.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT6177	SK 8123 8095	Medieval to Post Medieval	Linear features, Cottam/North Leverton. Cropmarks fo a disordered pattern of linear features – possible field boundaries and trackway.	500m study area
MNT6178	SK 8153 8050	Unknown	Curvilinear enclosure and trackway, Cottam. Cropmarks. Possible roundhouses.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT6179	SK 8180 8041	Unknown	Linear features, Cottam. Three parallel ditches.	Within Grid Connection Route
MNT8683	SK 809 809	Roman	Roan finds from South Leverton. Fieldwalking produced tile, pottery, mortaria.	500m study area
MNT9944	SK 7998 7861	Medieval	Documentary reference to Manor House at Rampton.	500m study area
MLI52497	SK 8429 8110	Unknown	Earthwork mound indicated on 1956 OS 6inch series map.	Within Grid Connection Corridor
MLI52500	SK 8393 7979	Unknown	Cropmark boundary and trackway	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI52536	SK 8370 7922	Medieval	Gritted pottery and a little Torksey ware, artefact scatter.	500m study area
MLI52544	SK 8390 7915	Medieval	Cropmark medieval boundary ditch	500m study area
MLI54108	SK 8374 8076	Unknown	Undated cropmarks of an enclosure and ring ditch	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI54282	SK 8368 7955	Early Medieval	Anglo-Saxon material from Tank Field. 14 Northumbrian coins and other Anglo-Saxon material found by metal detectorists.	5km study area



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI52488	SK 8384 8112	Post-Medieval	Earthworks of post-medieval flood defences.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI98528	SK 83748 79236	Early Medieval	Early Medieval Activity, Torksey comprising boundary, pits, kiln, ditches.	500m study area
MLI98529	SK 8375 7917	Medieval	Medieval cemetery, Torksey. Thirteen 12 th to 13 th century graves identified containing 19 individuals. Ditches and pits containing pottery from the same period also discovered. A possible workshop associated with a kiln also revealed.	500m study area
MLI98530	SK 83707 79264	Post-Medieval	Post-Medieval Activity, Torksey	500m study Area
MLI116491	SK 8461 8148	Post-Medieval	Former Farmhouse, Rectory Farm, Marton. Demolished.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125067	SK 8359 8030	Early Medieval	The Winter Camp of the Viking Great Army at Torksey	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125068	SK 8360 8055	Roman	Probable Roman Farmstead at Brampton identified by geophysics.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125069	SK 8348 8052	Medieval to Post-Medieval	A Rabbit Warren at Brampton identified by geophysics.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125070	SK 8366 7974	Medieval to Post-Medieval	A Rabbit Warren at Torksey identified by geophysics.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125072	SK 8354 7982	Roman	A Roman pottery scatter, Brampton. Ten sherds of greyware found during trial trenching.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI125073	SK 8354 7982	Early Medieval to Medieval	A Late Anglo-Saxon and Medieval Pottery Scatter at Brampton. 37 sherds, majority medieval but some Anglo-Saxon sherds identified.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI118779	SK 8354 7982	Post-Medieval	Post-Medieval Pottery, Brampton. Unstratified collection of over 70 sherds.	Within Grid Connection Route



Reference	Grid Reference	Period	Description	Within Site or Study Area?
MLI90075	SK 83700 79491	Unknown	Human remains and masonry fragments found to the north of the railway, Torksey. Suggested they relate to St Leonard's Priory or the missing parish church of St Mary.	500m study Area
MLI54281	SK 8376 7949	Medieval	Byzantine lead seal found by a metal detectorist in Tank Field, Torksey. Seal is of Alexis Comnenos, Byzantine Emperor 1081 – 1118 AD.	500m study Area
MLI53786	SK 844 807	Unknown	Bunkers Hill Warren, placename evidence	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI52498	SK 8360 7990	Neolithic	Neolithic stone axe found on Pottery Farm	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI52495	SK 8332 8014	Neolithic	Lower half of a Neolithic stone axe found on Pottery Farm	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI52469	SK 8351 7986	Post-Medieval	Pottery Farm, Brampton. Post-medieval farmstead, demolished.	Within Grid Connection Route
MLI118780	SK 8384 7954	Post-Medieval	Unnamed farmstead, Torksey. Site of a demolished 19 th century farmstead.	500m study area
AEC001	SK 85057 83049	Post-medieval	Clay Farm – 19 th century farmhouse and farmstead	Solar and Energy Storage Park

Gate Burton Energy Park Preliminary Environmental Information Report Volume 3, Appendix 7-B: Known Heiritage Assets